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Overview

The Mobile Money for the Unbanked Consumer Insights Toolkit is 

designed to help mobile operators effectively launch consumer 

market research studies. This toolkit provides insights on how to:

• Communicate with and select market research vendors

• Determine the required scope of market research

• Draft effective questions

• Analyze data

This is the first version of the toolkit. If you would like to contribute to 

subsequent versions, please contact Paul Leishman at 

(pleishman@gsm.org). 

mailto:pleishman@gsm.org
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Overview

Focus Group In-Depth Interviews Survey

Offers Thematic Analysis Thematic Analysis Quantitative Analysis

Good For... - Identifying potential themes

- Determining survey questions

Gaining deep understanding of a segment

Delving further on a survey insight

Qualifying theories emerging from survey

Addressing personal topics

Assessing market opportunities

Gauging performance

Uncovering high level attitudes

Timescale Less than one month 1-2 months 2 months +

The first and most important step in conducting market research is

establishing your objectives. Doing so will ensure that you select the

right market research tool for your needs. Spend a few minutes

understanding what you want to accomplish and try to make a

connection between the market research tools described below.
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Working with Research Vendors 

Where to find them:

• A directory of market research agencies can be found in the 

appendix of this document

How to reach out to them:

• Submit an RFP

• Contact relationship manager directly and ask them to 

create a proposal based on your requirements

What you‟ll need to give them:

Prior to launching a project, a market research agency 

will first want to understand the project background and 

your objectives. Be ready to provide them with a brief 

that details:

• Background on your organization and industry

• Your objectives for the study

• Detail on what types of people you want to sample

• Timelines / Key milestones

How Their Pricing Works:

• Incidence: it will cost less to survey 100 car owners in Detroit than 100 stamp collectors because they‟re easier to find

• Sample Size: it will cost more to survey 500 car owners than 100 car owners because each participant must be paid

• Timeline: Rush jobs are often billed at a premium

• Survey Length: longer surveys may cost more because additional fieldworkers will be required to 

• Location of Deployment: surveys conducted in remote areas cost more since staff must be transported

Several cost drivers will impact how much a survey will cost, including:
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Working with Research Vendors 

A good market research agency will provide adequate responses to the following questions:

Questions

1. Who will own the data at the end of the study?

2. Do you have a sector specialist?

3. What is your experience in X, Y, Z markets?

4. Who will conduct the fieldwork?

5. What training do you offer fieldworkers?

6. What process is in place to ensure accuracy of data?

7. Do you have video recording capabilities for focus groups?

8. Can you describe your random sampling process? 

Be sure that you have exclusive legal ownership to use the data and that 

confidentiality is ensured to protect your commercial interests. 

Preferably, the agency will have be structured with multiple industry specialists. 

A financial services and/or mobile specialist should lead your engagement. 

If you are interested in understanding multiple footprints, consider choosing a 

vendor accordingly. Be sure that the vendor has experience in chosen markets.. 

Preferably, the agency will employ their own fieldworkers rather than contract 

them from an agency since this may increase data quality.

Your conversations with an agency team manager are only worthwhile if the key 

messages get passed on to the fieldworkers who will conduct interviews. 

At least 30% of the data from each interviewer should be independently audited. 

If errors are detected, all responses from that interviewer should be discarded. 

If conducting a focus group, ensure that it can be recorded and that you‟ll have 

an option to „listen in‟ as it progresses.

Your agency should have a rigorous process for ensuring data is truly random 

(i.e. randomly selected region, household, individual) to avoid skewed data (i.e. 

only talking to people who are at home during the day and not working)

Things to Look For
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Sampling and Choosing a Sample Size

Sampling:

There are two main types of sampling:

a) Random – involves selecting areas of a country, households within the area, and individuals within the household at random. 

The individual will be asked a set of screening criteria (established by you), and if they meet the criteria, the interview will

proceed. Random sampling ensures that survey results can be extrapolated to the general population. 

b) Targeted – involves actively seeking out a particular customer segment (i.e. if you want to talk specifically to mobile money 

customers, doing so via random sampling may be difficult in countries where few people have adopted. In this case, targeted 

sampling would be used. 

TIP: When you do random sampling, try to ask a couple questions to every household that the field team approaches to gather additional ‘free’ 

data (in other words, even though not every household will meet the survey criteria, you can still gather some information).

Sample Size:

As a rule of thumb, attempt to target 200+ respondents for each relevant customer segment. In other words, if you wanted to 

understand unbanked mobile money users and banked mobile money users, your survey would be at least 400 (n= 200 unbanked 

respondents, n= 200 banked respondents).

RESOURCE: Use the sample size calculator in the excel file to further understand how big or small your sample should be.
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Writing Questions – Top 10 Rules

1. To provide grounding and provoke thoughts, do a focus group before you write survey questions. 

To understand how sophisticated your potential survey respondents will be, try to spend some time with them first. This will 

help make sure the language you‟re using is at their level. You may also learn some additional interesting hypotheses you‟ll 

wish to test in the survey. 

80% of customers would not pay US$1 for a domestic 

remittance service from Alpha co. 

80% of customers would not pay US$1 for a domestic 

remittance...

...40% of these respondents indicate that they would not pay 

because they „cannot afford it, but would try the service if it was 

cheaper‟

...30% of these respondents indicate that they would not pay 

because they „don‟t trust the Alpha brand, but would try it if the 

service was offered from someone else‟

...30% of these respondents indicate that they would not pay 

because they „don‟t send domestic remittances‟

F
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Potential Question Likely issue
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Writing Questions – Top 10 Rules

2. Let your „information objectives‟ be your guide; don‟t start writing questions at random. 

An information objective is different than a question. Your survey should have a number of information objectives (or 

themes) that represent areas you want to understand. Phrased in another way, an information objective could be a 

statement or hypothesis that you‟d like to be able to make or test.

Objective: Understand awareness levels

Question: Which bank brands are you aware of?

Question: Which mobile brands are you aware of?

Question: Have you heard of „mobile money‟?

Objective: Understand cash inflows and outflows

Question: From which of the following sources do you receive cash?

Question: At what locations do you spend your money?

Objective: Understand likelihood of adoption

Question: Which of the following products would you try?

Question: Of the products you would not try, please indicate why.

Not Good Good

Question: Which bank brands are you aware of?

Question: Do you receive social grant payments?

Question: How many times per month do you reload your mobile?

Question: Would you ever consider saving money on your mobile?

Question: Are you aware of Alpha Mobile Company?

Question: Have you heard of „mobile money‟?

F
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Writing Questions – Top 10 Rules

3. Ask the basic questions that will let you understand your customer segments.

Different types of customers may answer each question differently. Be sure to ask questions up front that will allow you to 

know how each customer segment will respond to a question. 

25% of customers are „interested‟ or „very interested‟ in using 

their mobile phone to save money. 

Geographic Segmentation: 10% of urban customers, and 50% of 

rural customers are interested in using their mobile phone to 

save money. 

Gender Segmentation: 5% of males and 30% of females are 

interested in using their mobile phone to save money. 

Age Segmentation: 5% of people under age-18 vs. 30% of 

people over age-18 are interested in using their mobile phone to 

save money. 

Behavioural Segmentation: 70% of customer who spend more 

than US$3 per month on mobile are interested in using their 

mobile phone to save money.

Somewhat Valuable Very Valuable
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Writing Questions – Top 10 Rules

4. Think carefully about how your questions are phrased.  

Consumer insights surveys are meant to be an objective way of assessing your market. Don‟t phrase questions in a way 

that would inherently support your hypothesis. Be sure that each question is phrased in a simple and direct way that 

provides enough context for the respondent to give an informed answer, rather than an arbitrary guess. 

Question: How unlikely are you to try mobile money?

Question: Do you currently have an mWallet? 

Question: How likely are you to save money on your phone?

Question: „Mobile money‟ is something that allows you to do X, 

Y, Z. If it were available to you, how likely would you be to try it 

in the next 6 months?

Question: Some people use their mobile phones for things like 

sending money, saving money, or paying back loans. Do you 

use your phone to do any of these things?

Question: Some people use their phone to store any spare cash 

rather than keeping it under their bed or with a friend. If it were 

available, how likely would you be to try this type of service in 

the next 6 months?

Phrased Poorly Phrased Well
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Writing Questions – Top 10 Rules

5. Ask yourself what action you would take from each proposed question. If your answer is „then 

I‟d ask them another question‟, make sure that subsequent question is included. 

Consumer insights surveys should answer more questions than they raise. Think through „what else‟ you‟d want to know 

based on potential answers to each question. An effective way of doing this is to make sure your line of questioning 

covers both the „whats‟ and the „whys‟.

80% of customers would not pay a US$1 fee for a domestic 

remittance service from Alpha co...

...40% of these respondents indicate that they would not pay 

because they „cannot afford it, but would try the service if it was 

cheaper‟

...30% of these respondents indicate that they would not pay 

because they „don‟t trust the Alpha brand, but would try it if the 

service was offered from someone else‟

...30% of these respondents indicate that they would not pay 

because they „don‟t send domestic remittances‟

Not Useful Useful

80% of customers would not pay a US$1 fee for a domestic 

remittance service from Alpha co. 
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Writing Questions – Top 10 Rules

6. Ask your most important (or mentally challenging) questions early in the interview. 

If the interview is too long, the respondent may become tired or impatient and offer responses that are not entirely 

accurate. Get your critical information relatively early (while making sure you‟ve offered enough surrounding context). 

Simple Yes/No response questions that require minimal thinking

Personal questions (if any) that may be sensitive and would 

benefit from being asked once a rapport has been built

Questions that may be answered more accurately once the 

respondent has spent some time in the proper mindset and 

would benefit from the context provided by previous questions

Questions That Shouldn’t Be at the End Questions That Should Be at the End

Unaided questions (i.e. How many bank brands can you think of)

Questions that require a respondent to recall an even that 

happened a long time ago
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Writing Questions – Top 10 Rules

7. Make the answer options to your questions objective and mutually exclusive / collectively 

exhaustive. 

Consumer insight data is only valuable if you give the respondent an opportunity to answer honestly and accurately.  

How likely are you to adopt mobile money in the next 6 months?

a) Very likely

b) Likely

c) Not sure

d) Unlikely

e) Definitely will not adopt

How many mobile money customers are there in your home?

a) 0

b) 1

c) 2

d) 3

e) 4

f) 5

Not Good Good

How likely are you to adopt mobile money in the next 6 months?

a) Extremely likely

b) Highly likely

c) Very likely

d) Likely

How many mobile money customers are there in your home?

a) 1

b) 2

c) 3

d) 4

e) 5
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Writing Questions – Top 10 Rules

8. Structure your questions to encourage the respondent to think of a concrete event rather than 

a vague reaction. 

It will be mentally easier and yield more accurate data if respondents think of a specific time that they used a product or 

made a decision when reacting to a statement.

Thinking of the last three time you used mobile money, which of 

the following challenges have you had:

a) Adding e-value to account

b) Withdrawing cash from an agent

c) Long queues at agent

Not Good Good

Which of the following challenges do you think mobile money 

has?

a) Adding e-value to account

b) Withdrawing cash from an agent

c) Long queues at agent
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Writing Questions – Top 10 Rules

9. Don‟t ask questions to which the respondent won‟t know the answer.

Let your respondents talk about what they know best.   

How much cash do you currently have stored store on your 

mobile money account?

a) $0

b) $1

c) $2

d) $3+

What was the value of your last mobile money transaction?

Not Good Good

How much cash does your cousin currently have stored on his 

mobile money account?

a) $0

b) $1

c) $2

d) $3+

What were the value of your last 15 mobile money transactions?
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Writing Questions – Top 10 Rules

10. Get perspectives from your colleagues and the industry.

Many different types of surveys have been deployed in various markets. Get feedback on your proposed questions from 

industry colleagues. 

Launching a survey that has been sanity checked multiple times, 

so you can be sure that the questions are logical and you have 

covered all critical bases.

Not Good Good

Launching a survey that nobody has ever seen before.
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Conducting Analysis

TO BE COMPLETED
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Resources

Global Market Research Agencies

• TNS Global:

http://www.tnsglobal.com/

• Synovate:

http://www.synovate.com

• Euro monitor:

http://www.euromonitor.com/

• Research International

http://www.research-int.com/

• InterMedia

www.intermedia.org/

• Steadman Group

http://www.steadman-group.com

• GFK Group

http://www.gfk.com/

Documents*

• Philippines Consumer Insights Survey 

• Philippines Focus Group moderator guide

• Kenya M-PESA survey

Tools*

• Sample Size Calculator

Links

Sample RFP (http://www.dgmarket.com/tenders/np-

notice.do~3969949)

* Available as individual files in folder

http://www.tnsglobal.com/
http://www.synovate.com/
http://www.euromonitor.com/
http://www.research-int.com/
http://www.research-int.com/
http://www.research-int.com/
http://www.intermedia.org/
http://www.steadman-group.com/
http://www.steadman-group.com/
http://www.steadman-group.com/
http://www.gfk.com/
http://www.dgmarket.com/tenders/np-notice.do~3969949
http://www.dgmarket.com/tenders/np-notice.do~3969949
http://www.dgmarket.com/tenders/np-notice.do~3969949
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Resources

Terms Definition Example

Incidence Rate The extent or frequency of occurrence A “2% mobile money user incidence rate” 

means that from 100 randomly selected 

individuals in random households, the agency 

will find 2 mobile money users. 

Sample Size (aka „n‟) The number of individuals interviewed Our project will have an n= 800 (i.e. We will 

conduct interviews with 800 people)

Statistical Significance A result is statistically significant if it‟s 

unlikely to have occurred by chance.

The findings from this study have a 95% 

chance of being true.

Statistical Validity A result is statistically significant if it‟s 

unlikely to have occurred by chance.

This question‟s results are not statistically 

valid because the respondent didn‟t have an 

opportunity to provide the answer they likely 

would have...

1

2

3

4
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Resources

A) Omnibus research (four markets; sample size 1,000, 5-10 questions)

Agency* Price (USD)  Time frame  

Echo 

Research

Market

25,500China 9 weeks  

10,500 India 9 weeks  

12,000Brazil 10 weeks  

7,500** Nigeria tbc  
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Price Quote Benchmarking: Philippines and Kenya
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Price Quote Benchmarking: Kenya
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Price Quote Benchmarking: Philippines


